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It is the only house of its period within many miles which 
was built of brick. It is entirely original with no structural 
changes of any kind. Only the kitchen, not considered part of 
the original house, has been modernized.

The house is in two sections. The frame portion predates the 
brick section and is believed to be 18th century construction. 
Research from early deeds and an 18th century newspaper ad, would 
indicate a possible range of date from 1747 to 1788. This portion 
is 1 1/2 stories and consres downstairs of one large room with 
a huge fireplace and a smaller room to the rear with a corner 
fireplace. Both fireplaces use the same flue. Above these rooms, 
reached by narrow, well worn stairs, is a loft now used as a 
bedroom. In the cellar beneath this section is a cistern. The 
well, now filled in, was near the front door. Attached to this 
frame section to the east is the present kitchen, believed to have 
been a lean-to at one time. It has only a crawl space beneath. 
According to Smith family tradition the frame portion of the present 
house was originally the Arnold homestead. The frame section was 
originally located nearer the Whippany River and was brought up and 
annexed to the present house in 1812.

The second section is a two story house built of a pinkish 
red brick with the date 1812 inlaid in black brick on the west end. 
On the east side of this section are massive chimneys of varying 
heights, 3 in all. The original roof is still intact and is built 
of slate supported by handsome hand hewn beams in the attic. The 
bricks were made on the property from clay found in the lowlands 
south east to the house. This is the only brick house in the 
Washington Valley area, encompassing some three square miles.

The brick section consists of three rooms and a hall downstairs 
and three rooms and a hall upstairs, with two fireplaces downstairs 
and two upstairs. The mantels in this house are classicly 
beautiful, especially the one in the upstairs front bedroom. The 
ones in the older section are simple by comparison.

There are wide floorboards throughout the house, though in one 
room they have been covered by new flooring. The hardware on all 
the doors is original. Most of the windows are 9 over 6 sash 
with much of the original glass still intact. The front hall stair 
railing is a young cherry sapling and remains as beautiful as when 
it was constructed in 1812.
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In the basement are three large stone arches supporting the 
upstairs fireplaces. The cellar floor is of brick and has an 
unusual brick drainage down the center.

The outbuildings consist of a stone smokehouse and weather­ 
ed barn with its original boards and in some places original stain 
A corncrib and a hen house complete the outbuildings. Some years 
ago a large barn was torn down. A stonewall runs in front of the 
house and down one side giving it a sense of privacy. The lime 
kiln is south east of the house on Washington Valley Road.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

John Smith House is significant for two reasons: Architecture 
and Agriculture.

Architecturally this house is very much intact in form and 
interior features from to 1812 construction. It is one of the 
few brick houses in the area and has the date 1812 delineated in the 
brick gable end using dark bricks. This is an uncommon practice 
for this area; it is more typical for South Jersey. Agriculturally 
it is significant because of the work and planning that John Smith's 
son Johnathan did in restoring the productivity of the wheat crop 
and around Morris County.

John Smith and his descendents lived in this house for four 
generations; one hundred and sixty-five years; from 1789 until 
1959.

The land was originally part of the homestead farm of Jacob 
Arnold, who was the owner and proprietor of the Arnold Tavern 
where General Washington made his headquaters in Morristown during 
the first winter encampment 1778-9. Jacob Arnold, according to 
the Smith family tradition owned the frame portion of the house. 
The land was sold to Peter Mackie at a sheriffs sale in 1793.

On August 24, 1798, John Smith purchased 140 acres of land from 
Mackie for L1420 York money, according to the original deed.

John Smith was born in Caldwell, Essex County. At the age of 
14, he served 20 days as a wagoner in the Revolution, carting 
baggage for General Winds brigade of militia at New Windsor.

He was a member of the Presbyterian Church in Morristown from 
1788 until his death in 1855. From 1809-1854, he served as 
Overseer of the Highways. He was one of the original subscribers 
to the Washington Valley Schoolhouse in 1813 and served as a 
trustee for many years.

At John Smith's death in 1855, the property passed to his 
eldest son, Jonathan Hugh Smith.
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Significance (cont)

Johnathan was known as a "scientific" farmer. Morris County 
had at one time been a large wheat-growing section, but then some­ 
thing happened and the wheat grew to straw. Johnathan after careful 
inspection, discovered that lime was needed to revive the soil. In 
order to remedey the situation, he had limestone from Ralston hauled 
to the farm and accordingly built a lime kiln in the bank east of 
the house. As a result of the use of lime, the wheat yielded a 
better crop then ever, the ruins of the Kiln can still be seen on 
the property.

Besides farming, he built roads and culverts for the county 
and served on the Morris Township Committee from 1838 until 1855. 
Like his father, he also served as a trustee to the Washington 
Valley School House for many years. He was also a member of the 
South Street Presbyterian Churches' First Board of Trustees when 
it was formed May 17, 1841.

The property passed to his son Zenas after 'his death in 1881. 
He continued to farm and had a large dairy heard. At his death in 
1929, the property passed to his three daughters who lived there 
until their deaths. In 1959 the property was sold out of the 
Smith family possession.

The John Smith House is unique to the area and has withstood any 
major alterations for over 160 years. The Smith family did many 
significant things to aid in the development of Morris County in 
the mid-19th century.


